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Building and In-Ground Hardware Infrastructure Technology Refresh
Combined Sources Sought / Request for Information Notice

Fleet Numerical Meteorological and Oceanography Center, located in Monterey, CA., has a requirement for fiber optic infrastructure replacement services. The purpose of this combined Sources Sought / Request for Information (RFI) is to seek information from industry.
Work is to be performed primarily ONSITE, in Monterey. The Contractor is not required to be based in Monterey; however, commuting expenses will NOT be paid.
This combined notice provides an opportunity for respondents to submit their technical questions / comments to the Performance Work Statement (PWS), as well as to submit their availability and potential to fulfill the Navy’s requirement related to this request in the form of a capability package. Information is sought on industry best practices, vendor technical questions, capabilities and company profile information.
Price submissions are not being requested and will not be accepted with this RFI. The results of this RFI will assist the Contracting Officer in determining the acquisition strategy for the required services. A Best Value Tradeoff acquisition is anticipated. The Government anticipates a single award.

The PWS requirements are expected to change prior to release of the Request for Proposal (RFP). The office drop requirements included in the PWS are expected to be removed in building 704 and more added in 702; the net change is expected to be minimal.

Vendor questions and submissions are to be sent to chris.seier@navy.mil, Phone: 717-605-2189 and Valerie.hawthone@navy.mil, Phone: 717-605-3946. Do NOT send .zip files; these files are automatically removed by our network; send uncompressed files only.

For the purposes of the Sources Sought / RFI and the upcoming procurements for this requirement, if any, ALL communications shall be directed to the NAVSUP Contracting Office POC’s listed above. Interested parties shall NOT contact the customer with questions / concerns.

Submittals furnished will not be returned to the sender. No debriefs will be conducted. Eligibility in participating in a future acquisition does not depend upon a response to this notice.

Proprietary information is neither requested nor desired. If such information is submitted, it must clearly be marked "proprietary" on every sheet containing such information, and the proprietary information must be segregated to the maximum extent practicable from other portions of the response (e.g., use an attachment or exhibit).

Subject matter experts from Fleet Numerical will review offeror submissions that comply with the submission instructions using the following criteria: breadth, depth and relevancy of experience as it relates to the work envisioned in the Draft PWS and as further specified in the Government’s Information Request. Fleet Numerical may not review offeror submissions that do not comply with the submission instructions.
FAR Clause 52.215-3 Request for Information or Solicitation for Planning Purposes applies.

Request for Information or Solicitation for Planning Purposes (Oct 1997)

(a) The Government does not intend to award a contract on the basis of this solicitation or to otherwise pay for the information solicited except as an allowable cost under other contracts as provided in subsection 31.205-18, Bid and proposal costs, of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(b) Although “proposal” and “offeror” are used in this Request for Information, your response will be treated as information only. It shall not be used as a proposal.

(c) This solicitation is issued for the purpose of: Acquisition Planning.

This Sources Sought / RFI is for planning purposes, and does not constitute a commitment, implied or otherwise, that a procurement action will follow. NAVSUP WSS and Fleet Numerical will use the information submitted in response to this notice at its discretion and will not provide comments to any submission; however, NAVSUP WSS and Fleet Numerical reserve the right to contact any respondent to this notice for the sole purpose of enhancing NAVSUP WSS and Fleet Numerical ’s understanding of the notice submission.

The content of any responses to this notice may be reflected in any subsequent solicitation, except for content marked or designated as business confidential or proprietary which will be fully protected from release outside the government/

Timeline:
	Phase
	Date
	Time
(Unless noted, all times Eastern)

	RFI Released
	11/16/12
	

	Pre-Site visit questions due
	11/29/12
	9:00 AM

	Pre-Site visit answers posted
	12/6/12
	11:00 AM

	Site visit request due
	12/11/12
	9:00 AM

	Site visit
	12/20/12
	9:00 AM (Pacific)

	Post-site visit questions due
	1/7/13
	9:00 AM

	Post site visit answers due
	1/14/13
	11:00 AM

	White paper submissions due
	1/28/13
	9:00 AM





Vendors submitting multiple questions should submit a consolidated list.

SITE VISIT:
· The pre-site visit questions and response are to aid the vendor is making a decision on site visit attendance.
· To ensure vendors understand the scope and magnitude of the project, vendors SHALL attend the site visit to be considered for the RFP phase.
· The Government will be presenting information on the project, showing currently installed infrastructure and spaces.
· Questions will be accepted during the site visit, but the Government will not provide responses until after the site visit and to all interested parties.
· Travel and commuting costs will not be paid.
· Site survey or RFP cost will NOT be paid.
· Attendees are limited to three per vendor
· Site visit instructions to be posted with pre-site visit responses
· The site visit date noted is a tentative date. If changes are required, notice will be provided no later than 12/6/12.

While a site visit is MANDATORY to be considered in the RFP phase, submissions of white papers is not mandatory. Submission is highly suggested though to help us understand the market players and refine our requirement.

White papers shall address the following:
· Business information (One page limit)
· Vendor CAGE, business size, existing contractual vehicles (e.g., GSA, GWAC, etc.)
· What proportion does the vendor propose to subcontract?
· Does the vendor anticipate being a prime or a subcontractor?
· If the vendor is interested in partnering, indicate so. We will provide a list of vendors and POCs as part of the RFP; we will NOT facilitate partnering.
· Company security level and availability of cleared personnel
· No security clearance is required. The vendor will only be installing the cable runs. The Government will be performing the connections to the network. For companies / personnel not possessing appropriate security clearances, personnel will be escorted in secure spaces. Companies / personnel with appropriate clearances require no escort and may be rated more highly in the RFP phase. Most work in classified spaces is at the Secret level; however, some Top Secret space access will be required.
· Vendor capabilities (10 page limit)


· Past performance (Three page limit)
· Submit a maximum of three instances. Submit one page, maximum, for each contract; use the attached form.
· The vendor shall describe its quality of work under past performance and the past performance of its subcontractors (if applicable) on a contract held within the last five (5) years which is similar scope, magnitude and complexity to that which is detailed in the PWS, or affirmatively state that it possesses no relevant directly related or similar past performance.
· This information will only be used to determine potential to complete the required work.
· Materials (No Page Limit)
· The Government is buying a full infrastructure solution. The vendor will provide all material required to complete the solution. 
· Vendors will provide a proposed material list and detailed material specifications as part of their RFP proposals; only general information is required for the RFI.
· What is the estimated lead-time for the required material?
· Are certain brands more robust and reliable than other brands? Should the material be brand name specific?
· Are fire retardant cables required to meet codes?
· What is the range of manufacturer’s warranties available for each required type component?
· Would requiring a manufacturer’s ISO certification help ensure material quality? What type of certification is available for each component?
· Media converters, if required, will be provided the government.
· Testing (No Page Limit)
· What is industry standard for acceptable signal loss? Is that determined by the manufacturer?
· How does industry propose testing for loss?
· What is proposed acceptance standard?
· Removal (No Page Limit)
· What are the advantages and disadvantages to removing the old infrastructure?
· What precautions need to be taken in removal?
· The decision whether or not to have a removal phase will depend on RFI comments / suggestions.


· Phasing (No Page Limit)
· Would industry prefer a phased contract, done as options, or one large contract? What are the advantages and disadvantages of each?
· What is the industry proposed timeline per building and inter-building trunk, for installation and removal?
· Is the Government timeline / phasing realistic? See Government Proposed Phases below.
· Phase / sub-phases may be handled as options in accordance with FAR part 17.2.
· Other Questions / Comments (No Page Limit)
· What installation method is proposed, pulling, blowing, etc? What are the advantages and disadvantages of the available solutions?
· How does industry propose mitigating risk?
· Is onsite storage required for tools, materials, an onsite program manager, etc? How much space? Is an Internet connection required?
· Provide other comments on the RFI / PWS that will help to improve the outcome.
· What local, state and Unified Facilities Guide Specifications are applicable?
· Are local or state permits required?
· Is an independent inspection required?
· Are fire retardant cables required?

PAGE LIMIT SUMMARY
	SECTION
	PAGES

	Business Information
	1

	Technical Capabilities
	10

	Past Performance
	3

	Materials
	No Page Limit

	Testing
	No Page Limit

	Removal
	No Page Limit

	Phasing
	No Page Limit

	Other Questions / Comments
	No Page Limit





Evaluation Criteria:

Corporate Experience

Using information provided by the completed Past Performance forms, evaluation will determine relevance to the Source Sought / RFI in terms:

•	Same or similar scope (selection and installation of fiber optic network infrastructure) within the last five years
•	Same or similar magnitude (performance of services of a dollar value / FTE comparable to the dollar value / FTE to that which is described in the RFI’s PWS) within the last five years
•	Same or similar complexity and quality (comparison of the infrastructure installations described in the RFI) within the last five years

Corporate Experience Scope

Each respondent’s Corporate Experience will be reviewed with respect to the RFI in terms of same or similar scope (selection and installation of fiber optic network infrastructure). The Technical Evaluation Team will consider each respondent’s Past Performance information with respect to the performance and assessment standards stated in PWS; see attachment one.

Corporate Experience Magnitude:

Magnitude (performance of services of a dollar value / FTE comparable to the dollar value / FTE to that which is described in the RFI’s PWS).

Corporate Experience Complexity:

Complexity (comparison of the infrastructure installations described in the RFI).  The TEC will consider the variety of duties associated with selection and installation of the infrastructure components.

Past Performance

Using information provided by the completed Past Performance forms, evaluation will focus on quality of performance. This evaluation will be restricted to those contracts / projects determined to be relevant to the Sources Sought / RFI.  The Government reserves the right to obtain information for use in the evaluation from any and all sources, including sources outside of the Government.



White paper submissions are due 9:00 AM, Eastern, 1/28/13.
Format:

· Submissions shall contain the following language on every page: SOURCE SELECTION SENSITIVE - SEE FAR PART 2.101 AND 3.104.
· Company name and Sources Sought / RFI number listed on each page
· Proprietary information SHALL be marked as such, on a page-by-page basis
· MS Word and / or Excel format. PDF is only acceptable for marketing brochures
· Single-spaced, with each page numbered in the format:  Page __ of __
· Font: 10 or 12, 8 x 11 ½, one-inch margins
· Page limit: See page limit summary, above
· Page limit does not include divider pages, cover sheets, or table of contents



Government Proposed Phases:
	PHASE
	DESCRIPTION
	TIMELINE
	RESPONSIBLE PARTY
	PAYABLE PHASE

	1
	Site assessment (SA) / Project plan (PP) / Project schedule (PS)
	SA – 14 Days ARO
PP – 28 Days ARO
PS – End of task?
	Contractor
	Yes

	

	2
	INSTALLATION
	
	
	

	2a
	Building 700 installation
	Vendor to propose
	Contractor
	Yes

	2b
	Building 702 installation
	Vendor to propose
	Contractor
	Yes

	2c
	Trunk installation - 
Includes running the cable into the termination point in each building
	Vendor to propose
	Contractor
	Yes

	- Subphases 2a, 2b, and 2c may run concurrently, at the vendors discretion
- Vendor to test prior to turnover to the Government

	

	3
	TRANSITION
	
	
	

	3a
	Building 700 transition and preliminary acceptance
	60 Days
	Government
	No

	3b
	Building 702 transition and preliminary acceptance
	60 Days
	Government
	No

	- Government to connect from patch panel to the network and performance acceptance testing

	

	4
	REMOVAL
	
	
	

	4a
	Building 700 removal
	60 Days
	Contractor
	Yes

	4b
	Building 702 removal
	60 Days
	Contractor
	Yes

	4c
	Trunk removal - 
Includes removing the cable from the termination point in each building
	60 Days
	Contractor
	Yes

	Subphases 4a,4b and 4c may run concurrently, at the vendors discretion

	

	5
	Wrap-up
	
	
	

	5a
	Corrections – Performed at contractor expense
	60 days after preliminary acceptance of the phase
	Contractor
	No

	5b
	Configuration diagrams / documentation / final acceptance
	14 days prior to end of contract
	Contractor
	Yes
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Past Performance  Form


Past Performance Form
Past Performance Information Form

		1.  Complete Name of Government agency, Commercial Firm, or other organization






		2.  Complete Address






		3.  Contract number or other reference




		4.  Date of Contract






		5.  Date work began




		6.  Date work was completed






		7.  Initial contract price, estimated cost and fee, or target cost and profit or fee




		8.  Final amount invoiced or amount invoiced to date






		9a.  Technical point of contact (name, title, address, telephone no., and email address)




		9b.  Contracting or purchasing point of contact (name, title, address, telephone no., and email address)






		10.  Location of work (country, state or province, county, city)






		11.  Description of contract work.  Describe nature and scope of this work.  Provide a detailed explanation demonstrating the relevance of the contract to the requirements of the solicitation.  (Attach an explanation of any performance problems or other conflicts with the customer.  Describe any litigation, pending, on-going, or completed.  Use a continuation sheet, if necessary.)





		11a. Name(s) of subcontractor(s) used, if any, and a description of the extent of work performed by the subcontractor(s).





		 11b. Address compliance with requirements of the clauses at FAR 52.219-8, "Utilization of Small Business Concerns," and 52.219-9, "Small Business Subcontracting Plan."





		12.  Current status of contract (choose one):


_____Work continuing, on schedule                                                                          _____Terminated for convenience

_____Work continuing, behind schedule                                                                  _____Terminated for default

_____Work completed, no further action pending or underway                          _____Other (explain)

_____Work completed, routine administrative action pending or underway

_____Work completed, claims negotiations pending or underway

_____Work completed, litigation pending or underway





Instructions for Completing the Past Performance Information Form


Item 1
Insert the complete name of the customer, including parent organization.  Do not use acronyms.


Item 2
Insert the customer's complete address, including both post office box and street address, if possible.


Item 3
Insert any contract number or other contract reference used by the customer.


Item 4
Insert the date on which the contract came into existence.


Item 5
Insert the date on which the contract came into existence.


Item 6
Insert the date on which the customer agreed that the work was satisfactorily completed (including



substantial completion), aside from any pending or on-going administrative actions, claims



negotiations, or litigation.


Item 7
Insert the price, estimated cost and fee, or target cost and profit or fee as it appeared in the original



contract.  If the contract included multiple, separately-priced items, add the individual item amounts



and insert the total price, estimated cost and fee, or target cost and profit or fee.


Item 8
Insert the final sum of all invoices, or the sum of all invoices to date, including agreed upon and



disputed amounts, paid and awaiting payment.


Item 9a
Insert the name, title, address, telephone number, and email address (if available) of the program or



project manager, quality assurance representative, or other customer technical representative who is



most familiar with the quality of your work under the contract.


Item 9b
Insert the name, title, address, telephone number, and email address (if available) of the contracting



officer, purchasing agent, or other customer contracting or purchasing representative who is most



familiar with your work under the contract.


Item 10
Insert the location(s) where the work was performed, including the country (if other than the United



States) and the state or province, county (if applicable), and city.


Item 11
Describe the nature and scope of the work.  The objective is to shown how the work that you did or are



doing is similar in nature and scope to the work that is to be performed under the contract



contemplated by the request for proposals.  Describe any unusual circumstances of performance or



problems that may be relevant to the work that is to be performed.  Tell your side of the story of any



conflicts with the customer concerning which they may make adverse remarks about your



performance.  Describe any actions that you have taken or plan to take to correct any shortcomings in



your performance.  Describe any pending, on-going, or completed litigation.


Item 11a
Insert the name, address, telephone number, and email address (if available) of the subcontractor(s) used, 



if any, and a description of the extent of work performed by the subcontractor(s).


Item 11b
Address your compliance with requirements of the clauses at FAR 52.219-8, "Utilization of Small Business Concerns," and 52.219-9, "Small Business Subcontracting Plan" in performance of the contract, if applicable.  If these requirements were not in the contract, state “Not applicable.”

Item 12
Insert an "X" in the block next to the choice which best describes the current status of the contract.  If



you select the "Other" block, provide a brief explanation.



